
 

 
 

MEMBER CONDUCT COMMITTEE 
 

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via 
the Council’s website: charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees 
 
Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The use of any 
images or sound recordings is not under the Council’s control. 
 
 
 

To: Councillors Murphy (Chair), Ranson (Vice-Chair), Bentley, Draycott, Hadji-Nikolaou, 
Rollings and Ward (for attention) 

Ball (Parish Member), Ellingworth (Parish Member) and Jones (Parish Member)  
 

All other members of the Council 
(for information) 

 
You are requested to attend the meeting of the Member Conduct Committee to be held in 
Committee Room 1, at the Council Offices, Southfields, Loughborough on Monday, 28th 
November 2022 at 6.00 pm for the following business. 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Southfields 
Loughborough 
 
18th November 2022 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 
 
2.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
3 - 5 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13th June 2022. 
  
 

  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/karenw/AppData/local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/NU3M8P7G/charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees


 

3.   DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS, AND OTHER 
REGISTRABLE AND NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS 
 

 

 For information, disclosable pecuniary interests and registrable interests relate to 
entries that are included, or should be included, on a councillor’s register of 
interest.  Non-registrable interests relate to any other matters. 
  

  
4.   QUESTIONS UNDER COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 12.8 

 
 

 No questions were received. 
  

5.   UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 
 

6 - 9 

 A report of the Monitoring Officer providing an update on complaints received 
about breaches of the Code of Conduct and any issues arising from those 
complaints. 

  
6.   REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 

 
10 - 32 

 A report of the Monitoring Officer to enable the Committee to review the 
Constitution. 

  
7.   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
33 - 35 

 A report of the Monitoring Officer to enable the Committee to agree a work 
programme to plan its future business 

  
MEETING DATES 
Meetings of the Committee during 2022/23 will be held at 6.00pm on the following dates: 
  
13th March 2023 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

1 
 

Member Conduct Committee - 13th June 2022 
Published – 17th June 2022  

 

MEMBER CONDUCT COMMITTEE 
13TH JUNE 2022 

 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillor Ward 
 
The Chair stated that the meeting would be recorded and the sound recording 
subsequently made available via the Council’s website.  He also advised that, under 
the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, other people may film, 
record, tweet or blog from this meeting, and the use of any such images or sound 
recordings was not under the Council’s control. 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13th December 2021 were confirmed as a true 
record. 
 

2. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS.  
 
No disclosures were made. 
 

3. QUESTIONS UNDER COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 12.8  
 
No questions had been received. 
 

4. UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS RECEIVED  
 
Considered a report of the Monitoring Officer providing an update on complaints 
received about breaches of the Members’ Code of Conduct and any issues arising 
from those complaints (item 5 on the agenda filed with these minutes). 
 
It was clarified that the complaint about a Borough Councillor in 2022/23 related to a 
potentially improper connection with a landlord of a HMO property. 
 
RESOLVED that the current position in respect of complaints about breaches of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct that have been received by noted. 
 
 

PRESENT:  The Chair (Councillor Murphy) 
The Vice Chair (Councillor Ranson) 

 Councillors Draycott, Hadji-Nikolaou, K. Harris and 
Rollings 

  
Councillors Ball, Ellingworth and Jones (Parish 
Members)  

  
 Head of Strategic Support 

Democratic Services Manager 
 Democratic Services Officer (NC) 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

2 
 

Member Conduct Committee - 13th June 2022 
Published – 17th June 2022  

 

Reason 
 
To keep the Committee informed about complaints. 
 

5. MEMBER CONDUCT COMPLAINTS - FACT FINDING REPORTS  
 
Considered a report of the Monitoring Officer presenting a proposal to update the 
reporting and publicity arrangements for Member Conduct complaints at the fact 
finding stage (item 6 on the agenda filed with these minutes). 
 
The Monitoring Officer explained the background to this proposal, that currently only 
the ‘complaints received’ report regarding fact-finding information was in the public 
domain and noted that if the proposal was approved, it would not require a change to 
the Council’s constitution. 
 
Summary of discussion: 

• the proposal would not prevent recipients of the fact-finding report circulating 
the information more widely if they wished but an anonymised report as 
proposed would not incur any privacy issues from the Council’s perspective. 

• the fact-finding reports could be included in FOI requests under the Freedom of 
Information (FOI) Act 2020.  The Committee had agreed in June 2013 that as 
the potential breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct was not proven at the 
fact finding stage the name of the councillor of whom a complaint had been 
made would not be released unless it was in the public’s interest. 

• the proposed approach to fact-finding reports would not result in additional work 
for officers. 

• if the current process was continued but with the reports marked as confidential 
the Council could not enforce recipients to observe this. 

• transparency of the process was important and the proposal would support this.  
The proposed fact-finding reports and / or a link to the documents could be 
uploaded to the Council’s website on the ‘Make a Complaint about Councillors’ 
webpage after the 10 working days appeal period had passed. 

• it could be important to protect a councillors’ privacy particularly if the complaint 
was not upheld.  However, the proposed report template would not include 
identifying names.  If appropriate, malicious complaints would be referred by 
the Monitoring Officer to the Police and numerous complaints from one person 
would be identified by the Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer 
during the fact-finding process. 

• identifying Parish and Town Councils in the fact-finding report was considered 
to be required.  Of the three Parish Members attending two members 
considered this would be appropriate and that it was in the public’s interest to 
be aware of complaints made about their local council.  It was noted that there 
were some parish and town councils where the number of councillors was low 
and this could potentially increase the risk of the councillor being complained 
about being identified.  However the report would be a very high level summary 
of the fact finding information and it was considered low risk. 

 
RESOLVED that the proposed approach towards fact finding reports into Member 
conduct complaints as set out in Part B of the report be approved, and that such fact 

Page 4



 

 

3 
 

Member Conduct Committee - 13th June 2022 
Published – 17th June 2022  

 

finding reports, including the name of the Borough and Parish and Town Councils 
should in future, be published on the Borough Council’s website. 
 
Reason 
 
To respond to a recent recommendation following an independent investigation that 
the status of fact-finding reports into Member conduct complaints should be clarified, 
and to adopt a revised approach based on that used by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales. 
 

6. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Considered a report of the Monitoring Officer enabling the Committee to agree a work 
programme to plan its future business (item 7 on the agenda filed with these minutes). 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee’s current work programme be noted and updated I 
accordance with the decisions taken during the consideration of this item and other 
items on the agenda. 
 
Reason 
 
To enable the Committee to fulfil its role in promoting and maintaining high standards 
of conduct by councillor and co-opted members. 
 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. No reference may be made to these minutes at the next ordinary Council meeting 

unless notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by five 
members of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following publication of 
these minutes. 
 

2. Councillor Jones (non-voting Parish Member) and the Democratic Services 
Manager listed as present, attended the meeting virtually. 
 

3. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting 
of the Member Conduct Committee. 

 

Page 5



MEMBER CONDUCT COMMITTEE – 28TH NOVEMBER 2022 
 

Report of the Monitoring Officer 
 

Part A 
 
 UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS RECEIVED  
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To provide the Committee with an update on the complaints about breaches of the 
Code of Conduct that have been received and any issues arising from those 
complaints.   
 
Recommendation 
 
That the current position in respect of complaints about breaches of the code of 
conduct that have been received be noted. 
 
Reason 
 
To keep the Committee informed about complaints. 
 
Policy Justification and Previous Decisions 
 
The functions and responsibilities of the Committee set out in the Council’s 
Constitution include determining any complaints that members of the Borough 
Council or the parish and town councils in the Borough have breached the Code of 
Conduct.  The initial stages of the complaints process are dealt with by the 
Monitoring Officer and the purpose of this report is to keep the Committee informed 
of the volume and nature of complaints that are received. 
 
Implementation Timetable including Future Decisions 
 
It is recommended that the Committee receives reports at each meeting about the 
complaints that have been received. 
 
Report Implications 
 
The following implications have been identified for this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None 
 
Risk Management 
 
No risks have been identified with this decision. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



Background Papers:  None 
 
Appendix A: List of complaints & actions 
 
Officer to Contact:  Adrian Ward  
    Monitoring Officer 

01509 634573 
adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk   
 
Karen Widdowson 
Democratic Services Manager and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 
01509 634778 
Karen.widdowson@charnwood.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 7

mailto:adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.widdowson@charnwood.gov.uk


Part B 
  
Summary of Complaints Received to 30th October 2022  
 

1. Since the last meeting of the Committee held on 13th June 2022, and up to 30th  
October 2022, no new complaints have been received.  
 

2. For comparative information, the following table summarises complaints received 
in previous years (including complaints about both Borough and Parish/Town 
Councillors): 

 
 

Year Total 
Complaints 

2012/13 
(9 months) 

10 

2013/14 6 

2014/15 21 

2015/16 14 

2016/17 7 

2017/18 10 

2018/19 13 

2019/20 9 

2020/21  7 

2021/22 6 

2022/23 2 

 
   

Page 8



 
Details of Complaints Received in 2022/23    APPENDIX A 

 

Type of 
councillor 

Number of 
complaints 

Outcome Issues raised 
in complaint 

Reason for no 
further action 

Description of 
other action 

Outcome of 
investigation 

Borough 1 Hearing 
scheduled 

Conflict of 
interest in 
relation to an 
HMO property. 

  Potential breaches 
of the Code of 
Conduct identified. 

Parish / 
Town 

1 No breach of 
the Code of 
Conduct 
identified 

Bullying and 
intimidating 
behaviour while 
chairing a 
meeting.  

   

 P
age 9



MEMBER CONDUCT COMMITTEE – 28TH NOVEMBER 2022 
 

Report of the Monitoring Officer 
 

Part A 

1. That the Committee notes the report and the content of the current sections of 
the Constitution relating to member conduct and the handling of member conduct 
complaints.  

 
2. That the Committee makes any recommendations regarding changes to the 

Council’s Constitution relating to its roles that it wishes to see.  
 
Reasons 
 
1&2. To enable the Committee’s views to form part of the annual review of the 

Council’s Constitution.    
 
Policy Justification and Previous Decisions 
 
The roles of the Committee include:  
 

• monitoring the operation of, and advising the Council on, the adoption or 
revision of codes and protocols relating to standards issues  

• overseeing the process for dealing with complaints that those codes and 
protocols have been breached and where necessary making determinations of 
specific complaints 

• making recommendations on major amendments to the Council’s Constitution 
which involve standards issues. 

 
Implementation Timetable including Future Decisions 
 
The Council reviews the Constitution each year.  As part of the review consultation is 
undertaken with officers and councillors.  It is planned to submit the results of the 
review to the Cabinet on 9th February 2023 and Council on 27th February 2023.  At its 
meeting on 13th December 2021 the Committee agreed to review the Planning Code 
of Good Practice on a two yearly basis.  It will next be reviewed in 2023. 
 
Report Implications 
 
The following implications have been identified for this report. 
 

 
 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To provide the Committee with a briefing about the annual review of the Council’s 
Constitution and those parts of the Constitution that relate to the roles of the 
Committee. 
 
Recommendations 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Financial Implications 
 
None 
 
Risk Management 
 
No risks have been identified with this decision. 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Officers to Contact:  Adrian Ward  
    Head of Governance and HR and Monitoring Officer 

01509 634573 
adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk   
 
Karen Widdowson 
Democratic Services Manager and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 
01509 634785 
Karen.widdowson@charnwood.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 11

mailto:adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.widdowson@charnwood.gov.uk


1.0 Parts of the Constitution Dealing with Member Conduct Issues 
 

The Council’s Constitution includes a section containing the Council’s Codes and  
Protocols in relation to conduct.  These are: 

 

• Members’ Code of Conduct 

• Officers’ Code of Conduct 

• Protocol on Member/Officer Relations 

• Monitoring Officer Protocol 

• Members’ Planning Code of Good Practice 

• Protocol Presentations to Councillors. 
 

The Officers’ Code of Conduct falls within the remit of the Personnel Committee 
as it forms part of the terms and conditions on which staff are employed.  
However all 6 documents can be accessed using the link at the end of the report 
for the Committee’s information.   

 

2.0 Amendments 

The Monitoring Officer has reviewed Chapter 18 of the Constitution relating the 
arrangements for dealing with complaints about Member Conduct under the 
Localism Act 2011.  The suggested changes are set out in appendix A for the 
Committee to consider. 

 

3.0 Codes and Protocols 

The current codes and protocols in the Constitution can be found using the 

following link: 

 
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/files/documents/05_codes_and_protocols/05%20Cod
es%20and%20protocols.pdf 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/files/documents/05_codes_and_protocols/05%20Codes%20and%20protocols.pdf
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/files/documents/05_codes_and_protocols/05%20Codes%20and%20protocols.pdf


1 
Published 01 April 2022 

 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS ABOUT 
MEMBER CONDUCT UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011 

 
18.1 Introduction               18.1 
18.2 Making a complaint             18.2 
18.3 When a complaint is received            18.3 
18.4  Initial consideration of complaints by panels of                  

the Member Conduct Committee           18.6 
18.5  Investigation of Complaints             18.7 
18.6  Hearings and Appeals             18.9 
18.7 Hearing Principles              18.11 
18.8 Hearings by a Panel of Members of the Member  
           Conduct Committee             18.12 
18.9  After the hearing and appeals            18.13 
18.10 Non-Code of Conduct Complaints - Before the            

meeting of the Member Conduct Panel          18.14 
18.11 The meeting of the Panel             18.15 
18.12 The Right of Appeal             18.17 

 
18.1  Introduction  
 
 This procedure is the means by which the Monitoring Officer, 

and the Member Conduct Committee and its panels will deal 
with complaints that a member or co-opted member of an 
authority (the ‘Member’) has failed to comply with the Members’ 
Code of Conduct of the authority concerned.  The Member 
Conduct Committee is able to consider complaints involving 
alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct of Charnwood 
Borough Council and the 27 Town and Parish Councils, and 6 
Parish Meetings in the Borough (‘relevant authorities’). 

 
 Complaints that members of the Borough Council have failed to 

comply with the Council’s codes and protocols other than the 
Members’ Code of Conduct are dealt with in accordance with a 
separate procedure which is contained within this document. 

 
 The precise conduct and order of events of a meeting of the 

Member Conduct Committee and its panels will be a matter for 
the Chair of the Committee or panel as he or she and the 
Committee or panel consider appropriate in the circumstances.  
In exercising their discretion, they must have regard to the 
objective of ensuring the fairness and good administration of the 
complaints process, and the principles of natural justice. 

 
 It may be necessary for a person other than the Monitoring 

Officer to carry out the functions assigned to the Monitoring 
Officer below.  As a result, references to the Monitoring Officer 
below also include the Deputy Monitoring Officer, and any other 

Page 13

nickyc
Text Box
APPENDIX A



2 
Published 01 April 2022 

person appointed by the Monitoring Officer to carry out those 
functions. 

 
The Council has appointed a number of Independent Persons, 
who are not councillors or council employees, to assist in the 
process for dealing with complaints. Appointment of the 
Independent Persons to be made by Full Council on 
recommendation from the Monitoring Officer.  Independent 
Persons are consulted at each stage of the process by the 
Monitoring Officer so that an independent view of the complaint 
and any action proposed to be taken can be considered before 
any decision is taken. Members being complained about also 
have the right to consult an Independent Person. 

 
18.2 Making a Complaint 
  
   Charnwood Borough Councillors and the councillors of the 27 

Town and Parish Councils, and 6 Parish Meetings in the 
Borough have to comply with a Code of Conduct.   

 
 Complaints that a councillor has not followed the requirements of 

the relevant Code must be made in writing, including by 
electronic means.  Complaints by letter or e-mail should be 
addressed to the Monitoring Officer at the addresses below.  A 
complaint form will be made available to assist complainants in 
making complaints.  The complaint form will include provision for 
complainants to request that their name or details of the 
complaint should be withheld from the Member so that such 
requests can be considered by the Monitoring Officer who will 
decide whether to withhold that information or not. 
 

Adrian Ward 
Monitoring Officer 
Charnwood Borough Council 
Southfield Road 
Loughborough 
LE11 2TT 
e-mail adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk 

 
 The Monitoring Officer will arrange for appropriate support to be 

provided to those complainants requiring assistance to put their 
complaint in writing, for example where they have a disability or 
English is not their first language. 

 
 Where it is unclear whether the complainant wishes to make a 

formal complaint, the Monitoring Officer will contact the 
complainant and determine what outcome the complainant is 
seeking.  Where appropriate the Monitoring Officer will refer the 
complaint to the appropriate service or another authority to 
respond to. 

Page 14



3 
Published 01 April 2022 

 
 Where a complaint that a Member has failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct of a relevant authority is received the 
Monitoring Officer will write to the complainant to acknowledge 
receipt of the complaint within 5 working days and explain the 
process for dealing with the complaint. 

  
18.3   When a complaint is received 
 
 When a complaint that a Member has failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct of a relevant authority is received, the 
Monitoring Officer will, subject to considering any requests to the 
contrary made by complainant, inform the Member and consider 
whether an informal resolution of the complaint, for example an 
offer by the Member to make an apology or undertake training, is 
practicable and appropriate.  The Monitoring Officer will consult 
with one of the Independent Persons appointed by the Borough 
Council and consider, but not be bound by, the views of the 
complainant before concluding any informal resolution of a 
complaint. 
 
Where a complaint that a Member has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct of a relevant authority is received that the 
Monitoring Officer believes isn not resolvable informally, he or 
she will review the complaint and obtain any necessary 
information that he or she requires to determine whether the 
complaint merits further action or investigation.   Subject to 
considering any requests to the contrary made by the 
complainant, the Monitoring Officer may speak torequest the 
Member to respond to the complaint where he or she thinks 
appropriate in reaching his or her decision.  Normally the 
Monitoring Officer will seek to inform the Member that a 
complaint has been made about him or her at the earliest 
opportunity.  The Monitoring Officer will consult with one of the 
Independent Persons appointed by the Borough Council before 
reaching his or her decision. 

 

 In determining whether a complaint merits further action or 
investigation, the Monitoring Officer will consider: 

 
(i) whether the complaint is about the conduct of a member 

or co-opted member of the Borough Council or one of the 
27 Parish/Town Councils in the Borough who was in office 
and the Code of Conduct in force at the time of the 
alleged conduct; 

(ii) whether the conduct would, if proven, be a breach of the 
Code of Conduct; 

(iii) whether the complaint is sufficiently serious to merit 
further action. 

 

Page 15



4 
Published 01 April 2022 

 Within 15 working days of a complaint that a Member has failed 
to comply with the Code of Conduct of a relevant authority being 
received, the Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant, the 
Member and, where the Member is a parish or town councillor, 
the Clerk of the outcome of his or her initial consideration of the 
complaint.  Following consultation with one of the Independent 
Persons appointed by the Borough Council, the Monitoring 
Officer may decide that: 

 
(i) an informal resolution of the complaint is appropriate, and 

no further action is required; 
(ii) the complaint does not merit further action or investigation 

having consider the issues set out in paragraph 318.3 
above and no further action is required; 

(iii) the complaint merits investigation; 
(iv) the complaint merits further action other than an 

investigation, for example providing guidance or training 
for all councillors on a particular issue. 

 
 If the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person disagree 

on the course of action to be taken and the complainant is not 
satisfied with the outcome of the Monitoring Officer’s initial 
consideration of the complaint, he or she may request that the 
complaint is referred to a Panel of the Member Conduct 
Committee to determine whether the complaint merits further 
action or not. 

 
 If the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person agree on a 

course of action other than that the complaint merits 
investigation, the complainant will be given 10 working days to 
appeal in writing, setting out the reasons why they disagree with 
the decision. 

 
 If an appeal is received from the complainant, the Councillor 

being complained about will be given 10 working days to submit 
their own written response should they wish to do so. The 
original complaint, the Monitoring Officer’s fact-finding summary 
and the written appeal submissions from the complainant and 
Councillor being complained about will then be submitted to the 
Chair and Vice-chair of the Member Conduct Committee for 
consideration. Having considered the relevant documentation, 
either the Chair or Vice-chair has the option to refer the 
complaint to a Panel of the Member Conduct Committee for 
consideration, or to take no action. 

 
 If the complaint identifies criminal conduct, including offences 

relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, or a breach of other 
regulation by any person, the Monitoring Officer will refer the 
complainant to the Police or other appropriate regulatory body. 

 

Page 16



5 
Published 01 April 2022 

 Anonymous complaints – The Monitoring Officer will only refer 
anonymous complaints for investigation or other action where 
they are accompanied by documentary, photographic or other 
evidence which indicates an exceptionally serious or significant 
matter which can be satisfactorily dealt with without the need to 
interview the complainant. 

 
 Withdrawn complaints – The Monitoring Officer will consider 

requests by the complainant to withdraw a complaint.  The 
Monitoring Officer will not refer for investigation or further action 
complaints which are withdrawn except where the public interest 
in taking action due to the seriousness of the complaint 
significantly outweighs the complainant’s desire to withdraw the 
complaint and the complaint is accompanied by documentary, 
photographic or other evidence which indicates the matter can 
be satisfactorily dealt with without the need to interview the 
complainant.   

 
 The Monitoring Officer will consider requests by complainants 

that their identity and/or the nature of the complaint are withheld 
from the Member.  As a matter of fairness and natural justice, 
Members should usually be told who has made a complaint 
against them and what the complaint is about.  In exceptional 
circumstances the Monitoring Officer will agree to a request that 
the identity of the complaint should not be disclosed to the 
Member.  The circumstances in which such requests will be 
agreed to are: 

 
(i) the complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that 

they will be at risk of harm if their identity is disclosed; 
(ii) the complainant is an officer who works closely with the 

Member and they are afraid of the consequences to their 
employment if their identity is disclosed; 

(iii) the complainant has provided reasonable evidence that 
they suffer from a serious health condition and there are 
medical risks associated with their identity being 
disclosed. 

 
 The Monitoring Officer will consider whether, in exceptional 

circumstances, not to provide the Member with all or part of the 
details of the complaint if to provide the information would be 
against the public interest or prejudice the investigation.  The 
circumstances in which this might be appropriate are: 

 
(i) the Member is likely to attempt to intimidate the 

complainant or witnesses; 
(ii) the Member is likely to attempt to tamper with evidence 

and this is not outweighed by the fairness to the Member 
of being able to preserve evidence; 

Page 17



6 
Published 01 April 2022 

(iii) the disclosure to the Member of details of the complaint is 
likely to result in the identity of the complainant becoming 
apparent and the Monitoring Officer has decided to 
withhold that information from the Member. 

  
18.4  Initial consideration of complaints by panels of the Member 

Conduct Committee 
 
 Where a meeting of a panel is required, the Monitoring Officer 

will appoint members to the panel from among the members and 
reserve members of the Member Conduct Committee to 
consider the complaint (reserves are permitted).  The Panel will 
comprise 3 Borough Council members selected on the basis of 
political balance.  If the Member is a Parish or Town Councillor, 
one of the Parish Members of the Committee will also be 
appointed as a non-voting member of the Panel. 

 
 Except in exceptional circumstances, an agenda for the meeting 

will be sent to the members of the Panel at least five clear 
working days before the meeting. In addition to the 
documentation supplied by the complainant, the agenda papers 
for the meeting will include a report by the Monitoring Officer 
setting out a summary of the information he or she has gathered, 
the views of the Independent Person who the Monitoring Officer 
has consulted, and, where applicable, the written appeal 
submission from the complainant, and a statement by the 
Member and the views of the Independent Person who the 
Member has consulted if the Member wishes these to be 
submitted. 

 
 Meetings of the Panel are subject to the provisions of Part VA of 

the Local Government Act 1972.  The Monitoring Officer will 
consider whether the agenda papers include exempt information 
to which the press and public, including the complainant and the 
Member, should not have access.  The Panel’s decision will be 
recorded in the form of the minutes of its meeting having regard 
for any exempt information that it considered and communicated 
to the complainant, the Member and, where the Member is a 
parish or town councillor, the Clerk by letter. 

 
 The Panel will appoint a Chair from among its voting members.  

The Chair will deal with the following administrative matters prior 
to the consideration of any complaints: 

 
(i) ensuring the meeting is quorate (the Panel’s quorum is 

three Borough Council members); 
(ii) dealing with any disclosures of interest; 
(iii) ensuring that the members of the Panel understand the 

procedure to be followed. 
 

Page 18



7 
Published 01 April 2022 

 The Panel will come to one or more of the following decisions in 
respect of each complaint submitted to it: 
 
(i) to refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for 

investigation; 
(ii) to refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for other 

action; 
(iii) to refer the complainant to the Police as ittheir complaint 

identifies a criminal offence; 
(iv) to take no action in respect of the complaint. 

 
18.5 Investigation of Complaints  
 
 (a) Investigation reports 
 
Where a complaint has been referred for investigation, the Monitoring 
Officer , or another person appointed by the Monitoring Officerwill 
appoint a suitable person to carry out thean investigation (the 
‘Investigator’), will conduct that investigation, andwhich it will be 
completed within a maximum period of six months.  The Investigator 
may refer the complaint back to the Monitoring Officer where: 

 
(i)  as a result of the investigation the Investigator believes 

that the complaint is materially more or less serious than 
was apparent when the investigation was begun; 

(ii) as a result of new evidence, the Investigator believes that 
a different decision about whether to begin an 
investigation would have been taken had that evidence 
been known; 

(iii) in cases where (i) or (ii) apply the Investigator will also 
consider factors such as whether during the course of the 
investigation there has been a failure to co-operate by 
people involved in the complaint, whether there have 
been further complaints about the conduct of the Member 
or other members of the relevant authority; 

(iv) the Member has died, is seriously ill or has resigned from 
the relevant authority and the Investigator believes that it 
is no longer appropriate to continue the investigation. 

 
 The Monitoring Officer will consider any referrals back from the 

Investigator or matters as set out in section 18.5(a) arising from 
his or her own investigation.  Having consulted the Independent 
Person, the Monitoring Officer will review his or her decision on 
how the complaint should be dealt with, in accordance with the 
process set out in section 18.3.  Where the decision to 
investigate a complaint was made by a panel, the Monitoring 
Officer will refer the complaint and the matters raised back to a 
panel. 
 

Page 19



8 
Published 01 April 2022 

 Following receipt by the Monitoring Officer of the report on the 
outcome of an investigation, the Monitoring Officer will inform the 
complainant, the Member and, where the Member is a parish or 
town councillor, the Clerk of the outcome of his or her initial 
consideration of the report by letter.  Following consultation with 
one of the Independent Persons appointed by the Borough 
Council, the Monitoring Officer may decide that: 

 
(i) the Member has not breached the code of conduct and no 

further action is required; 
(ii) the Member has breached the code of conduct but has 

taken appropriate steps to remedy the situation and no 
further action is required; 

(iii) the Member has a case to answer and the Investigator’s 
report should be referred to a panel of the Member 
Conduct Committee for a hearing. 

 
 If the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person disagree 

on the course of action to be taken and the complainant is not 
satisfied with the outcome of the Monitoring Officer’s 
consideration of the investigation, he or she may request that the 
Investigator’s report is referred to a panel of the Member 
Conduct Committee to determine whether the complaint should 
be referred to a hearing or not. 

 
  If a review of the Monitoring Officer’s decision is requested, the 

Monitoring Officer will appoint members to the panel from among 
the members and reserve members of the Member Conduct 
Committee to consider the complaint (reserves are permitted).  
The Panel will comprise 3 Borough Council members selected 
on the basis of political balance.  If the Member is a Parish or 
Town Councillor, one of the Parish Members of the Committee 
will also be appointed as a non-voting member of the Panel. 

 
 Except in exceptional circumstances, an agenda for the meeting 

will be sent to the members of the Panel at least five clear 
working days before the meeting. In addition to the Investigator’s 
report the Monitoring Officer will provide the views of the 
Independent Person who the Monitoring Officer has consulted 
and the views of the Independent Person who the Member has 
consulted if the Member wishes this to be submitted. 

 
 Meetings of the Panel are subject to the provisions of Part VA of 

the Local Government Act 1972.  The Monitoring Officer will 
consider whether the agenda papers include exempt information 
to which the press and public, including the complainant and the 
Member, should not have access.  The Panel’s decision will be 
recorded in the form of the minutes of its meeting having regard 
for any exempt information that it considered and communicated 

Page 20



9 
Published 01 April 2022 

to the complainant, the Member and, where the Member is a 
parish or town councillor, the Clerk by letter. 

 
 The Panel will appoint a Chair from among its voting members.  

The Chair will deal with the following administrative matters prior 
to the consideration of any complaints: 
 
(i) ensuring the meeting is quorate (the Panel’s quorum is 

three Borough Council members); 
(ii) dealing with any disclosures of interest; 
(iii) ensuring that the members of the Panel understand the 

procedure to be followed. 
 
 The Panel will come to one of the following decisions in respect 

of each complaint submitted to it: 
 
(i) the Member has not breached the code of conduct and no 

further action is required; 
(ii) the Member has breached the code of conduct but has 

taken appropriate steps to remedy the situation and no 
further action is required; 

(iii) the Member has a case to answer and the Investigator’s 
report should be referred to a panel of the Member 
Conduct Committee for a hearing. 

 
18.6  Hearings and Appeals 
  
  Pre-hearing process 
 
 Where a hearing is required, the Monitoring Officer will 

undertake a pre-hearing process and then prepare a report for 
the Panel setting out the results of the process.  

 
 The object of the pre-hearing process is to enable the hearing to 

take place fairly and as efficiently as is reasonably practicable, 
through conveying to the Panel those aspects, issues and 
matters related to the Investigator’s report and the observations 
or representations made or received in respect of it that are 
relevant to the matter which was the subject of the investigation. 
As such, the Monitoring Officer’s covering report will concern 
itself with procedure and shall not contain any recommendation 
as to the outcome of the hearing.  

 
 The Monitoring Officer will invite the Member and Investigator to 

participate in the pre-hearing process.  The Monitoring Officer 
will: 

 
(i) write to the Member enclosing a copy of the Investigator’s 

report, where possible to inform the Member of the 
provisional date(s) of the Panel hearing and to request 

Page 21



10 
Published 01 April 2022 

him or her to return the following information, within 14 
days: 

 

• Member’s response to the evidence set out in the 
Investigator’s report; 

• Member’s evidence relating to the allegation not 
previously submitted or identified in the 
Investigator’s report; 

• Mitigating circumstances desired to be submitted by 
or on behalf of the Member; 

• Arrangements for the Panel hearing (witnesses, 
representation, request for documents or matters to 
be considered in private, etc.);  

• Details of proposed witnesses which are wished to 
be called; and 

• Any views of an Independent Person sought by the 
Member which he or she wishes to submit. 

 
(ii) Upon receipt of the Member’s comments in response to 

the Investigator’s report, the Monitoring Officer will copy 
that response to the Investigator and request within 14 
days the return of information relating to: 
 

• Response to the Member’s representations; and 

• Arrangements for the Panel hearing (witnesses, 
request for documents or matters to be considered 
in private, etc.). 

 
 The Monitoring Officer will produce his or her report on the 

outcome of the pre-hearing process.  The report will: 
 

(i) collate the paperwork to be presented or submitted to the 
hearing 

(ii) identify the main facts of the case that are in dispute; 
(iii) identify those issues, where appropriate, that are not 

relevant to the Panel’s hearing of the complaint; 
(iv) set out the views of the Independent Person(s) which 

have been sought by the Monitoring Officer and the 
Member (where the Member wishes those to be 
included); 

(v) list those witnesses which may be called to give evidence; 
and 

(vi) determine what papers (if any) are likely to be considered 
in the absence of press or public at the hearing and 
therefore exempted from publication prior to the hearing, 

 
    The Monitoring Officer will appoint members to the Panel from 

among the members and reserve members of the Member 
Conduct Committee to consider the complaint (reserves are 
permitted).  The Panel will comprise 3 Borough Council 

Page 22



11 
Published 01 April 2022 

members selected on the basis of political balance.  If the 
Member is a Parish or Town Councillor, one of the Parish 
Members of the Committee will also be appointed as a non-
voting member of the Panel. 

 
 Except in exceptional circumstances, an agenda for the meeting 

will be sent to the members of the Panel, at least five clear 
working days before the meeting.  The Monitoring Officer will 
provide the Member and the Investigator with a copy of the 
agenda.  The Monitoring Officer will publish that part of the 
agenda which he or she considers does not contain exempt 
information. 

  
18.7  Hearing Principles 
 
 Hearings are not a court and, therefore, evidence will not be 

taken on oath and persons attending the Panel will not be 
expected to stand when addressing the meeting or giving 
evidence.  However, the Panel remains quasi-judicial and the 
principles of natural justice will be applied.  All comments or 
questions must be put to, or through, the Chair.  The Panel will 
reach its decisions on the balance of probabilities based on the 
evidence presented to it. 

 
 The Member may be represented or accompanied during the 

meeting by a solicitor, counsel or, with the permission of the 
committee, another person.  The Panel may take legal advice, in 
private if necessary, from its legal adviserthe Monitoring Officer 
at any time during the hearing or while they are considering the 
outcome. The substance of any legal advice given to the Panel 
should be shared with the Member and the Investigator if they 
are present. 

 
 During the course of the hearing, the Panel can ask the 

Monitoring Officer to obtain further information if the Panel 
decides that it requires that information in order to reach a 
decision.  The hearing will be adjourned until the Monitoring 
Officer provides that information.  The Panel can make such a 
request only once per hearing; 

  
 
 
18.8 Hearings by a Panel of Members of the Member Conduct 

Committee 
 
 The Panel will appoint a Chair from among its members.  The 

Chair of the Panel will: 
 

(i) introduce those present; 

Page 23



12 
Published 01 April 2022 

(ii) establish that the hearing is quorate (the Panel’s quorum 
is 3 Borough Council members); 

(iii) deal with any disclosures of interest; 
(iv) ensure that the participants understand the procedure to 

be followed; 
(i) ensure that the Member, if unaccompanied, was made 

aware that he or she could have been represented. 
 

 
 Meetings of the Panel are subject to the provisions of Part VA of 

the Local Government Act 1972.  The Monitoring Officer will 
consider whether the agenda papers include exempt information 
to which the press and public, including the complainant and the 
Member, should not have access.   

 
 If the Member is not present, the Panel will consider any 

indication from the Member that he/she would not be present, 
and any reasons provided.  The Panel will then determine 
whether to hold the hearing in the absence of the Member or 
adjourn the hearing to another date. 

 
 If witnesses are to be called and the Panel has decided that the 

hearing should be held in exempt session, the Monitoring Officer 
will advise the Panel as to whether such witnesses should only 
be permitted to be present when they are called to answer 
questions.  

 
 The Investigator will put the case against the Member and may 

call witnesses.  The Member and/or his/her representative may 
ask questions of the investigating officer and any witnesses.  
The Panel may ask questions of the investigating officer and any 
witnesses. 

 
 The Member and/or his/her representative will put his/her case 

and may call witnesses.  The Investigator may ask questions of 
the Member and any witnesses.  The Panel may ask questions 
of the Member and any witnesses. 

 
 The Independent Person, if present, will give their views on the 

complaint, and may be questioned by the Investigator, the 
Member, or the Panel. 

 
 The Investigator will sum up first, followed by the Member and/or 

his/her representative.  No new evidence may be introduced at 
this stage. 

 
 The Panel may withdraw to consider the case and come to a 

decision in private.  The Monitoring Officer and the officer 
recording the proceedings will remain with the Panel.  If it is 
necessary to recall either party to clarify certain points, both 

Page 24



13 
Published 01 April 2022 

parties will returnbe present.  On their return, the Chair will 
announce the Panel’s decision in respect of the material facts 
and whether they amounted to a breach of the code of conduct.  

 
 If the Panel finds against the Member, he/she will be asked if 

he/she wishes to respond to the finding before the Panel 
considers whether to impose a sanction. The views of the 
Investigator and the Independent Person regarding potential 
sanctions will also be sought.   

 
 If the Panel finds against the Member, the Panel may impose 

one or more of the following sanctions: 
 

(i) issue a formal letter to the Member setting out the breach 
of the Code which has been identified; 

(ii) censure the Member; 
(iii) make recommendations to full Council to remove the 

Member from committee(s) and other appointments 
unless these are subject to political balance requirements; 

(iv) where political balance requirements apply make 
recommendations to the relevant Group Leader to remove 
the Member from committee(s) and other appointments; 

(v) make recommendations to the Leader to remove the 
Member from the Cabinet or from the role of Cabinet 
Support Member 

(vi) recommend that the Member undertake training or issue 
an apology.   

(vii) recommend removal from outside body appointments (for 
Charnwood Borough Council appointments this would be 
subject to approval of Cabinet); 

(viii)   withdraw specified facilities (IT equipment, internet access, 
email access) for a specified period; 

(vx)  exclude the Member from council premises for a specified 
period, except where necessary to attend council or 
committee meetings. 

 
 
 Where the Member is a parish/town councillor the Panel’s 

decision will be in the form of a recommendation to the relevant 
authority on what sanction to impose. 

 
 Once the Panel has sufficient information to enable it to 

determine whether a sanction should be applied and, if 
appropriate, what the sanction should be, the Panel may 
withdraw to consider the representations and evidence in 
private.  On their return, the Chair will announce the Panel’s 
decision.  

 
 After considering any verbal or written representations from the 

Investigator, tThe Panel will also consider whether it should 

Page 25



14 
Published 01 April 2022 

make any recommendations to the authority, with a view to 
promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct among 
members which will be announced by the Chair. 

  
18.9  After the hearing and appeals 
 
 The Panel will announce its decision on the day.  The Panel’s 

decision and reasons will be recorded in the form of the minutes 
of its meeting having regard for any exempt information that it 
considered and communicated to the relevant parties by letter.  
The Panel will, wherever possible, issue its full written decision 
and reasons within 10 working days of the end of the hearing.  

 
 The written decision will be provided to the Member, the 

complainant, the Investigator and where the Member is a 
parish/town councillor, the Parish/Town Clerk.  The written 
decision will, if a finding has been made that the Member had 
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, provide information 
as to the Member’s right to appeal against the finding 

 
 Where the Panel has determined that the Member failed to 

comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will 
arrange for the publication of a notice of the Panel’s findings and 
the Member’s right to appeal in a local newspaper and on the 
Borough Council’s website. 

 
 Where the Panel has determined that the Member did not fail to 

comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will 
arrange for the publication of a notice of the Panel’s findings in a 
local newspaper and on the Borough Council’s website unless 
the Member requests that no notice is published. 

 
 If the Panel finds against the Member, the Member may ask for 

that decision to be reviewed by the Borough Council’s Appeals 
and Review Committee.  A request for a review must be made in 
writing, giving the reasons for the request, to the Monitoring 
Officer/Deputy Monitoring Officer within 10 working days of the 
date of the written notification of the Panel’s decision.    

 
 On receipt of the review the Monitoring Officer/Deputy 

Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person 
will consider the validity of the appeal in terms of whether there 
has been a procedural breach or new evidence has come to 
light.   

 
 The appeal will normally be heard within 20 working days of the 

receipt of the written request stating the wish for the finding to be 
reviewed.  The appeal will be conducted following the procedure 
set out in section 8 but will consider only material relevant to the 
reasons for the review request set out by the Member.   

Page 26



15 
Published 01 April 2022 

 
18.10 Non-Code of Conduct Complaints - Before the meeting of 

the Member Conduct Panel 
 
 The Monitoring Officer will make enquiries and, where he or she 

considers it appropriate, investigate any allegations of 
misconduct in accordance with the Monitoring Officer Protocol.   

 
 Any investigation will be conducted as quickly as is reasonably 

possible, having regard to the nature of the complaint.  Unless it 
is inappropriate to do so, the Monitoring Officer will inform the 
complainant and the Member that the investigation is taking 
place, the matter being investigated and of the likely length of 
the investigation. 

 
 If, following an investigation, in the opinion of the Monitoring 

Officer there is no case to answer or the matter can be resolved 
by agreement of the parties involved, the Monitoring Officer will 
inform the parties involved and the Chair of the Member Conduct 
Committee of that finding. 

 
 If, following an investigation, in the opinion of the Monitoring 

Officer there is a case to answer and there is no possibility of the 
matter being resolved by agreement of the parties involved, the 
Monitoring Officer will: 

 
(i) prepare a report and inform the Member of the procedure 

which will be used; 
(ii) once the report is completed, inform the Member and send 

him/her a copy of the report; 
(iii) ask the Member or his/her representative to provide details 

of the evidence which he/she wishes to present at the 
hearing and the witnesses which he/she wishes to call at 
the hearing. 

 
 The Monitoring Officer’s report will normally include: 
 

(i) details of the alleged misconduct; 
(ii) a summary of the investigation; 
(iii) the names of any witnesses and copies of any 

documentary evidence to be presented at the hearing. 
  

 The Monitoring Officer will appoint members to a Panel from 
among the members and reserve members of the Member 
Conduct Committee to consider the complaint.  The Panel will 
comprise 3 Borough Council members selected on the basis of 
political balance.   

 
  Except in exceptional circumstances, an agenda for the meeting 

will be sent to the members of the Panel, at least five clear 

Page 27



16 
Published 01 April 2022 

working days before the meeting.  The Monitoring Officer will 
provide the Member and the Investigator with a copy of the 
agenda.  The Monitoring Officer will publish that part of the 
agenda which he or she considers does not contain exempt 
information. 

  
18.11 The meeting of the Panel 

 
 The Panel will appoint a Chair from among its members.  The 

Chair of the Panel will: 
 
(i) introduce those present; 
(ii) establish that the hearing is quorate (the Panel’s quorum is 3 

Borough Council members); 
(iii) deal with any disclosures of interest; 
(iv) ensure that the participants understand the procedure to be 

followed; 
(v) ensure that the Member, if unaccompanied, was made aware 

that he or she could have been represented. 
 
 Meetings of the Panel are subject to the provisions of Part VA of 

the Local Government Act 1972.  The Monitoring Officer will 
consider whether the agenda papers include exempt information 
to which the press and public, including the complainant and the 
Member, should not have access.   

 
 If the Member is not present, the Panel will consider any 

indication from the Member that he/she would not be present, 
and any reasons provided.  The Panel will then determine 
whether to hold the hearing in the absence of the Member or 
adjourn the hearing to another date. 

 
 The investigating officer will put the case against the Member 

and may call witnesses.  The Member and/or his/her 
representative may ask questions of the investigating officer and 
any witnesses.  The Panel may ask questions of the 
investigating officer and any witnesses. 

 
 The Member and/or his/her representative will put his/her case 

and may call witnesses.  The investigating officer may ask 
questions of the Member and any witnesses.  The Panel may 
ask questions of the Member and any witnesses. 

 
 The investigating officer will sum up first, followed by the 

Member and/or his/her representative.  No new evidence may 
be introduced at this stage. 

 
 The Panel may withdraw to consider the case and come to a 

decision in private.  The Monitoring Officer and the officer 
recording the proceedings will remain with the Panel.  If it is 

Page 28



17 
Published 01 April 2022 

necessary to recall either party to clarify certain points, both 
parties will return.  On their return, the Chair will announce the 
Panel’s decision.  

 
 If the Panel finds against the Member, he/she will be asked if 

he/she wishes to respond to the finding before the Panel 
considers whether to impose a sanction.  If the Panel finds 
against the Member, the Panel may impose one or more of the 
following sanctions: 

 
(i) issue a formal letter to the Member setting out the breach which 

has been identified; 
(ii) censure the Member; 
(iii) make recommendations to full Council to remove the Member 

from committee(s) and other appointments unless these are 
subject to political balance requirements; 

(iv) where political balance requirements apply make 
recommendations to the relevant Group Leader to remove the 
Member from committee(s) and other appointments; 

(v) make recommendations to the Leader to remove the Member 
from the Cabinet or from the role of Cabinet Support Member 

(vi) recommend that the Member undertake training or issue an 
apology.   

 
 Once the Panel has sufficient information to enable it to 

determine whether a sanction should be applied and, if 
appropriate, what the sanction should be, the Panel may 
withdraw to consider the representations and evidence in 
private.  On their return, the Chair will announce the Panel’s 
decision.  

 
 After considering any verbal or written representations from the 

investigating officer, the Panel will consider whether it should 
make any recommendations to the Council, with a view to 
promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct among 
members which will be announced by the Chair. 

 
 The Panel will announce its decision on the day.  The Panel’s 

decision and reasons will be recorded in the form of the minutes 
of its meeting having regard for any exempt information that it 
considered and communicated to the relevant parties by letter.  
The Panel will, wherever possible, issue its full written decision 
and reasons within 10 working days of the end of the hearing.  

 
 The hearing process as set out in section 18.8 will be followed. 
 
 The Panel will consider what publicity is appropriate in 

connection with its decision.  The Panel will ask for the views of 
the Member when considering what publicity is appropriate. 

  

Page 29



18 
Published 01 April 2022 

18.12 The Right of Appeal 
 
  If the Panel finds against the Member, the Member may ask for 

that decision to be reviewed.  A request for a review must be 
made in writing, giving the reasons for the request, to the 
Monitoring Officer within 10 working days of the date of the 
written notification of the Panel’s decision. 

 
 The appeal will be heard by the Appeals and Reviews 

Committee only after the Monitoring Officer in consultation with 
the Independent Person has considered the validity of the 
appeal in terms of whether there has been a procedural breach 
or if new evidence has come to light.    The appeal will normally 
be heard within four weeks of the receipt of the written request 
stating the wish for the finding to be reviewed. 

 
 The appeal will be conducted following the procedure set out in 

section 18.11 but will consider only material relevant to the 
reasons for the review request set out by the Member.   

Page 30



19 
Published 01 April 2022 

 

Page 31



1 
Published 01 April 2022 

 
   

Page 32



 
 

MEMBER CONDUCT COMMITTEE – 28TH NOVEMBER 2022 
 

Report of the Monitoring Officer 
 

  
Reason 
 
To enable the Committee to identify future items of business and enable planning for 
future meetings to be undertaken, for example preparing reports and arranging for the 
attendance of officers and/or others at meetings.  

 
Policy Justification and Previous Decisions 
 
At its meeting on 24th March 2014, the Committee resolved to introduce a work 
programme to manage the business to be conducted at its future meetings (minute 12 
refers).  The Committee has considered business at its subsequent meetings based 
on that programme.     
 
Implementation Timetable including Future Decisions 
 
It is recommended that the Committee reviews its work programme at every meeting.  
Future meetings for 2022-23 are as follows: 
 
13th March 2023 
 
Report Implications 
 
The following implications have been identified for this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None 
 
Risk Management 
 
No risks have been identified with this decision. 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Appendix:   Work Programme 
 

 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To enable the Committee to consider, and agree any changes to, its work programme 
to assist it to plan its future business.   
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Committee considers any items that it wishes to add to, or amend in, its  work 
programme for future meetings.   

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Officer to Contact:   Adrian Ward  
    Head of Governance and HR and Monitoring Officer 

01509 634573 
adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk   
 

 
 

Page 34

mailto:adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk


 
 

APPENDIX 
 

Member Conduct Committee – Work Programme 
 
 

ITEM NOTES DATE 

Update on 
Complaints 
Received 

An update on complaints received about 
breaches of the Code of Conduct and any 
issues arising from those complaints. 

 
Standing item 
 
 

Regular review of 
Members Code of 

Conduct and 
Planning Code 

7th December 2015 – requested the Chair 
and Vice-chair of the Plans Committee and 
the Head of Planning and Regeneration are 
invited to attend the Committee on a regular 
basis, to review the relationship between 
the Planning Code and the Members’ Code 
of Conduct.   
13th December 2021  - agreed this item be 
reviewed on a two yearly basis. 

December  2023 
 

(two yearly) 

 

Review of 
Constitution 

Consider details of possible amendments to 
the Constitution it may wish to recommend 
within the Committee’s remit as part of the 
annual review process 

December 2022 
 

(last considered 
2nd December 

2019) 

Review of local 
government ethical 
standards by the 

Committee on 
Standards in 
Public Life 

Consider the recommendations by the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life’s 
review of local government ethical 
standards after the Government has 
provided a response. 
 

To be scheduled   
 

(Government 
response circulated 
to Committee 21st 

March 2022) 

 

 
Review of the 
Constitution 

alongside CSPL 
recommendations 

Consider details of possible amendments to 
the Constitution after the recommendations 
of the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life have been considered by the 
Government. 
 

 
To be scheduled 

(awaiting 
Government 
response) 

 

 

Page 35


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Update on Complaints Received
	6 Review of the Constitution
	7 Work Programme



